
MEETING OF HARLOW COUNCIL
7.30 pm on Thursday, 1 November, 2018

In the Council Chamber, Civic Centre

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any items on the 
agenda.

3. Minutes  (Pages 6 - 14)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2018.

4. Communications from the Chair  

5. Petitions from the Public  

6. Questions from the Public  

7. Questions from Councillors  

8. Motions from Councillors  

a) Adoption of the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance 
Definition of Anti-Semitism  

Proposed by Councillor Lanie Shears (seconded by Councillor 
Andrew Johnson):

This Council deplores anti-Semitism in all its forms and therefore 
adopts the definition of anti-Semitism as set out by the 
International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance in full and without 
amendment; and in doing so pledges to combat this pernicious 
form of racism:

‘“Anti-Semitism is a certain perception of Jews, which may be 
expressed as hatred toward Jews. Rhetorical and physical 
manifestations of anti-Semitism are directed toward Jewish or non-
Jewish individuals and/or their property, toward Jewish community 
institutions and religious facilities.”

To guide IHRA in its work, the following examples may serve as 
illustrations:
 
Manifestations might include the targeting of the state of Israel, 

Public Document Pack



conceived as a Jewish collectivity. However, criticism of Israel 
similar to that levelled against any other country cannot be 
regarded as anti-Semitic. Anti-Semitism frequently charges Jews 
with conspiring to harm humanity, and it is often used to blame 
Jews for “why things go wrong.” It is expressed in speech, writing, 
visual forms and action, and employs sinister stereotypes and 
negative character traits.
 
Contemporary examples of anti-Semitism in public life, the media, 
schools, the workplace, and in the religious sphere could, taking 
into account the overall context, include, but are not limited to:

 Calling for, aiding, or justifying the killing or harming of Jews 
in the name of a radical ideology or an extremist view of 
religion.

 Making mendacious, dehumanising, demonising, or 
stereotypical allegations about Jews as such or the power of 
Jews as collective — such as, especially but not exclusively, 
the myth about a world Jewish conspiracy or of Jews 
controlling the media, economy, government or other 
societal institutions.

 Accusing Jews as a people of being responsible for real or 
imagined wrongdoing committed by a single Jewish person 
or group, or even for acts committed by non-Jews.

 Denying the fact, scope, mechanisms (e.g. gas chambers) 
or intentionality of the genocide of the Jewish people at the 
hands of National Socialist Germany and its supporters and 
accomplices during World War II (the Holocaust).

 Accusing the Jews as a people, or Israel as a state, of 
inventing or exaggerating the Holocaust.

 Accusing Jewish citizens of being more loyal to Israel, or to 
the alleged priorities of Jews worldwide, than to the interests 
of their own nations.

 Denying the Jewish people their right to self-determination, 
e.g., by claiming that the existence of a State of Israel is a 
racist endeavour.

 Applying double standards by requiring of it a behaviour not 
expected or demanded of any other democratic nation.

 Using the symbols and images associated with classic 
antisemitism (e.g., claims of Jews killing Jesus or blood 
libel) to characterise Israel or Israelis.



 Drawing comparisons of contemporary Israeli policy to that 
of the Nazis.

 Holding Jews collectively responsible for actions of the state 
of Israel.

Anti-Semitic acts are criminal when they are so defined by law (for 
example, denial of the Holocaust or distribution of anti-Semitic 
materials in some countries).
 
Criminal acts are anti-Semitic when the targets of attacks, whether 
they are people or property – such as buildings, schools, places of 
worship and cemeteries – are selected because they are, or are 
perceived to be, Jewish or linked to Jews.
 
Anti-Semitic discrimination is the denial to Jews of opportunities or 
services available to others and is illegal in many countries.’

This Council requests Cabinet to set up a Panel comprising cross 
party Councillor membership and leading members of the Jewish 
community, together with equivalent representatives from other 
religious communities within Harlow to explore what measures can 
be taken to be build confidence in the Jewish and other religious 
communities. 

b) Pensions for Women Born in the 1950's  

Proposed by Councillor Lanie Shears (seconded by Councillor 
Mark Ingall):

This Council calls upon Esther McVey, Secretary of State for Work 
and Pensions and the Government to make fair transitional state 
pension arrangements for all women born on or after 6th April 
1950, who have unfairly borne the burden of the increase to the 
State Pension Age with lack of appropriate notification.

Hundreds of thousands of women had significant pension changes 
imposed on them by the Pensions Acts of 1995 and 2011 with little 
or no personal notification of the changes. Some women had only 
two years notice of a six-year increase to their state pension age. 
Many women born in the 1950s are living in hardship as a result.

This Council calls upon Esther McVey, Secretary of State for Work 
and Pensions and the Government to reconsider transitional 
arrangements for women born on or after 6 April 1950, so that a 
phased and fair implementation ensures that women do not live in 
hardship due to pension changes they were not told about until it 
was too late to make alternative arrangements.



c) Permitted Development  

Proposed by Councillor Mark Ingall (seconded by Councillor John 
Strachan):

Changes to planning legislation in May 2013 has allowed the 
conversion of offices to residential accommodation through what is 
known as 'permitted development' and these conversions do not 
therefore require the permission of the local planning authority. 

In Harlow, this policy change has had unfortunate implications and 
disproportionate effects. Our town was deliberately planned to 
separate industrial and employment activity from residential areas. 
This was one way in which Gibberd sought to deliver quality homes 
and neighbourhoods to live in, with access to green space.

The consequences of this change have led to: 

 A large quantum of office to residential conversions in our 
town centre which has put significant additional pressure on 
the Police and other public services in Harlow.

 A loss of business accommodation in our employment areas 
meaning that we are unable to attract new office based 
businesses or cater for our own growing businesses that 
cannot be accommodated in the Science Park.

 The creation of a resident population, including families with 
children, who are living in industrial areas with poor access 
to education and health services, shops, utilities , public 
transport and decent amenities and safe play and green 
space that we expect in our residential neighbourhoods. We 
are also concerned about the risks posed to residents in 
these localities where there will be significantly higher heavy 
goods vehicle movements, congestion and poor air quality 
which may have health and safety impacts.

Such is the quantum of existing conversions (in excess of 1,000 
housing units) that this Council believes that there should now be a 
moratorium on any further such developments in Harlow and will 
seek to achieve this through our dialogue with the Government. 

This Council will also pursue additional applications for Article 4 
Directions which would mean any such proposed conversions 
would need to apply through the normal planning process and 
enable the local authority to exercise its powers in relation to 
location and quality of any conversions.



9. References from Cabinet and Committees  

10. Reports from Officers  

a) Appointment of Member Champion  

To appoint Councillor Tony Durcan as the Member Champion for 
Mental Health.

11. Minutes of Cabinet and Committee Meetings  

To note the following Cabinet and Committee minutes:

a) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 11 September 2018 of Licensing 
Committee  (Pages 15 - 16)

b) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 13 September 2018 of Cabinet  
(Pages 17 - 24)

c) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 16 October 2018 of Scrutiny 
Committee  (to follow)

d) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 17 October 2018 of Development 
Management Committee  (to follow)

e) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 18 October 2018 of Cabinet  
(to follow)

12. Matters of Urgent Business  



MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL
HELD ON

20 September 2018 7.30  - 8.45 pm

PRESENT

COUNCILLORS OFFICERS

Maggie Hulcoop (Chair)
Clive Souter (Vice-Chair)

Simon Carter
Nick Churchill
Jean Clark
Mike Danvers
Bob Davis
Tony Durcan
Waida Forman
Michael Garnett
Tony Hall
Michael Hardware
Eugenie Harvey
Mark Ingall
Andrew Johnson

Eddie Johnson
Shona Johnson
Sue Livings
Stefan Mullard
Russell Perrin
Danny Purton
Lanie Shears
Edna Stevens
Emma Toal
Chris Vince
Phil Waite
Mark Wilkinson

Brian Keane, Managing 
Director
Janet Jackson, Corporate and 
Governance Support Team 
Leader
Colleen O'Boyle, Interim Head 
of Governance
Lisa Thornett, Corporate 
Governance Support Officer

29. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors David Carter, Joel 
Charles, Karen Clempner, Tony Edwards and John Strachan.

30. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None.

31. MINUTES 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2018 are 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

32. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CHAIR 

The Chair outlined various events she had attended and in particular drew 
attention to the Carnival and the Golf day where she had raised in excess of 
£1600 from both events for her chosen charities. 

The Chair reminded Councillors that she would appreciate their support at 
the Civic Service to be held on 30 September 2018.

Public Document Pack

6

Agenda Item 3



33. PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

a) Save Harlow Town Park Paddling Pool

A petition of 1549 signatures was received to save Harlow Town Paddling 
Pool. 

Mr Dear presented his petition to the Council and Councillors then debated 
the petition.

Proposed by Councillor Andrew Johnson (seconded by Councillor Mark 
Ingall) it was:

RESOLVED that the original proposal to renovate all five paddling 
pools to splash parks be rescinded and the item be referred to the 
Scrutiny Committee for consideration. 

34. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 

The questions together with the answers are appended to the minutes.
 

35. QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 

The questions together with the answers are appended to the minutes. 

36. MOTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 

None.

37. REFERENCES FROM CABINET AND COMMITTEES

a) Referral from Cabinet - Local Development Plan - Submission to 
Planning Inspectorate for Examination Under Regulation 22

Proposed by Councillor Danny Purton (seconded by Councillor Mark Ingall) 
it was:

RESOLVED that:

A The Harlow Local Development Plan Pre-Submission Publication 
(2018) be formally approved for Submission to the Secretary of 
State in accordance with Regulation 22 of theTown and Country 
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2012 (as 
amended).

B The updated Local Development Scheme (Appendix G to the 
report) be approved.

C Delegated authority be given to the Managing Director, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Portfolio 

7



Holder for Environment, to make and approve any minor and 
inconsequential amendments to the documents to be submitted in 
support of the Harlow Local Development Plan Pre-Submission 
Publication (2018) arising from the completion of the ensuing 
technical studies prior to the Public Examination.

A vote on the motion was recorded. The details of the recorded named vote 
are below.

Referral from Cabinet - Local Development Plan - Submission to 
Planning Inspectorate for Examination Under Regulation 22 
(Resolution)
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop For
Councillor Clive Souter Abstain
Councillor Simon Carter Against
Councillor Nick Churchill Against
Councillor Jean Clark For
Councillor Mike Danvers For
Councillor Bob Davis For
Councillor Tony Durcan For
Councillor Waida Forman For
Councillor Michael Garnett Against
Councillor Tony Hall Against
Councillor Michael Hardware Against
Councillor Eugenie Harvey For
Councillor Mark Ingall For
Councillor Andrew Johnson Against
Councillor Eddie Johnson Against
Councillor Shona Johnson Against
Councillor Sue Livings Against
Councillor Stefan Mullard For
Councillor Russell Perrin Against
Councillor Danny Purton For
Councillor Lanie Shears For
Councillor Edna Stevens For
Councillor Emma Toal For
Councillor Chris Vince For
Councillor Phil Waite For
Councillor Mark Wilkinson For
Carried

b) Referral from Cabinet - Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18

Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark Ingall) 
it was:

RESOLVED that:

8



A The Annual Treasury Management Report for 2017/18, including 
that the Council operated within the Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement during 2017/18, be noted and approved.

B The issues that the outcome of the EU Referendum is creating 
and their impact on the Council’s treasury management activities 
be noted.

c) Referral from Licensing Committee - Use of Roof Signs on Private Hire 
Vehicles

Proposed by Councillor Edna Stevens (seconded by Councillor Lanie 
Shears) it was

RESOLVED that: 

A Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Conditions be amended to require 
private hire vehicles to display roof signs; and

B The specification for roof signs displayed by licensed private hire 
vehicles, be delegated to the Environment and Licensing Manager 
in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Licensing 
Committee.

38. REPORTS FROM OFFICERS 

None.

39. MINUTES OF CABINET AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings are noted. 

a) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 4 July 2018 of Development 
Management Committee

b) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 10 July 2018 of Licensing Committee

c) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 19 July 2018 of Cabinet

d) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 24 July 2018 of Scrutiny Committee

e) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 31 July 2018 of Audit and Standards 
Committee

f) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 22 August 2018 of Development 
Management Committee

g) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 4 September 2018 of Scrutiny 
Committee

9



h) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 5 September 2018 of Special Audit 
and Standards Committee

40. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS 

None.

CHAIR OF THE COUNCIL

10



Agenda item 6 refers

1. Mr David Forman to Councillor Mark Ingall, Leader of the Council

a) Will Harlow District Council adopt the International Holocaust 
Remembrance Alliance Working Definition of Antisemitism and its 
accompanying 11 examples of contemporary antisemitism in society 
without addition or deletion, especially given the fact that the United 
Kingdom government adopted it in December 2016, in order to build 
further confidence within the Jewish community in Harlow that 
antisemitism will not be tolerated?

b) If the desire to be free to criticise the actions of the Israeli government 
unencumbered by allegations of antisemitism delays your adoption of the 
HRA definition in full, will the Labour administration accept the explanation 
offered by the experts of the UK delegation to the IHRA Working Definition 
of Antisemitism issued in a press release on 7 August 2018:  “Any 
‘modified’ version of the IHRA definition that does not include all of its 11 
examples is no longer the IHRA Definition.  Adding or removing language 
undermines the months of international diplomacy and academic rigour 
that enabled this definition to exist.  If one organisation or institution can 
amend the wording to suit its own need, then logically anyone else could 
do the same.  We would once again revert to a world where antisemitism 
goes unaddressed simply because different entities cannot agree on what 
it is”? 

Response from Councillor Mark Ingall, Leader of the Council  

There have been some concerns amongst some people interested in 
international affairs that accepting the IHRA definition of anti-Semitism, 
together with the 11 examples, would prevent them from ever criticising the 
actions of the Israeli State, without being themselves labelled as being anti-
Semitic. Hence, they have been worried about accepting it without deletions 
or additions.

However proper reading of the text shows these fears are unfounded. The 
IHRA definition explicitly accepts that criticism of actions taken by the State of 
Israel can be made; as long as those criticisms are not used as a vehicle to 
deny the right of the State of Israel to exist, as long as those criticisms are of 
the actions of the state and not of the Jewish religion, as long as the State of 
Israel is not singled out for criticism and as long as comparisons are not made 
with the Holocaust.

Thus I feel confident that I could, if I wanted, speak out about the treatment of 
Palestinians by the State of Israel, just as I could, if I wanted, speak out about 

COUNCIL – 20 SEPTEMBER 2018
QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

Minute Item 34

11



the actions of the Saudi Arabian regime in Yemen, the appalling human 
tragedy unfolding for the Rohingya people in Myanmar and countless other 
examples of Governments acting in ways that are unacceptable. All very 
different issues, but all deeply troubling to people interested in international 
affairs.

Given this freedom, as the definition allows, I am happy to align myself fully 
with the IHRA definition and, via a motion that we will present to Council at 
the earliest opportunity, we will incorporate the definition into any relevant 
Council procedures.

But, I want to go further than that. Countering anti-Semitism and racism in all 
its forms is an issue I am certain members from both sides of this chamber 
feel passionate about. Therefore I propose that the Portfolio Holder for 
Equality and Diversity sets up a working group, to include Councillors from 
the opposition and leading figures in the Jewish community, to see what other 
measures we can take to build confidence within the Jewish Community, that 
this Council as a whole, condemns anti-Semitism, will not tolerate it and will 
take active steps to ensure that the Jewish community feel welcome and 
included as a valuable and intrinsic part of this religiously and ethnically 
diverse town.

2. Mr John Wake to Councillor Mark Ingall, Leader of the Council

Given that Harlow District Council had a budget surplus of one and a quarter 
million pounds for the last financial year, why has the Council not revised the 
Harlow Council Tax Support Scheme so that jobless householders in Harlow 
do not bear the full burden of the central government cut in funding for this 
benefit?

Response from Councillor Mark Ingall, Leader of the Council  

The Council achieved a surplus for the 2017/18 year which was one off in 
nature. The Council would be committing to ongoing costs if any revision to 
the Local Council Tax Support Scheme were made such that a lower 
contribution was made by claimants. It is not the Council’s policy to use one 
off resources to meet costs of ongoing commitments and would not 
demonstrate good financial management to do so.
 
Further, although Harlow have the duty to collect Council tax, the component 
kept by Harlow is just under 16 pence in every pound. Most of the money 
goes to Essex County Council and the Essex Police, Fire and 
Crime Commissioner. They will not accept a reduction in the component that 
they take, so for every pound Harlow reduces Council Tax for the jobless, it 
would cost the Council £6.37.

12



3. Mr Hugh Hoad to Councillor Mark Ingall, Leader of the Council

At the Full Council meeting on 29 March, a motion was moved that in view of 
the poor state of repair of the highways of Harlow, the Essex County Council 
Portfolio Holder for Highways would meet with Harlow County and District 
Councillors, the public and other interested parties to discuss. This meeting 
has not taken place. Was there ever any intention to hold this meeting?

Response from Councillor Mark Ingall, Leader of the Council

Following the Full Council meeting on 29 March a letter was sent to the 
Leader of the County Council. The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Infrastructure of the County Council, Councillor Kevin Bentley, then met with a 
residents’ association to discuss their concerns.

I, together with a small group of Residents from the Waterhouse Moor 
Residents’ Association, have since met with Councillor Bentley, and in August 
he joined me in a tour of Harlow to view some of the worst potholes within the 
town. Last week I received an email from the County Council stating that 
although the County Council prioritises main roads, rather than estate roads, 
permanent repairs were taking place on the following estate roads:

a) Northbrooks – week commencing 13 September 2018

b) Maddox Road – week commencing 17 September 2018

c) Momples Road – week commencing 17 September 2018

d) Church Leys – week commencing 25 September 2018

Although I’m under no illusions that there are a large number of issues outside 
of these four roads that need urgent attention, it is a promising start. I am 
thankful that Councillor Bentley came to Harlow to listen to our concerns and 
will continue to work with him to ensure that our town’s potholes are prioritised. 

13



Agenda item 7 refers

1. Councillor Shona Johnson to Councillor Waida Forman, Deputy Leader 
and Portfolio Holder for Equality and Diversity

Does the Portfolio Holder believe that the Council and all political parties 
making it up should recognise, sign up to and enforce the IHRA definition of 
Antisemitism in full?

Response from Councillor Waida Forman, Deputy Leader and Portfolio 
Holder for Equality and Diversity

Please see the answer given by the Leader if the Council in response to 
question 1 of the questions from the public. I am a hate crime ambassador 
and as you know this Council is a Hate Incident Reporting Centre and we will 
continue to campaign to raise awareness of hate crime, such as anti-
Semitism and how to report such crimes. I hope that Councillor Shona 
Johnson will join me and become a hate crime ambassador and work with me 
to educate the community.

2. Councillor Shona Johnson to Councillor Waida Forman, Deputy Leader 
and Portfolio Holder for Equality and Diversity

As we have just celebrated Yom Kippur (18 to 19 September), can the 
Portfolio Holder tell us what the Council is doing to combat Antisemitism in 
Harlow?

Response from Councillor Waida Forman, Deputy Leader and Portfolio 
Holder for Equality and Diversity

Please see the answer given by the Leader if the Council in response to 
question 1 of the questions from the public. However, I would like to add that I 
have recently launched the Faith and Culture forum of which I am the Chair.  I 
am pleased to announce that Rabbi Irit Shillor is the Vice Chair and we will 
work together to promote inclusion in our town.  As a Muslim and a black 
person, I have personally experience racism and Islamophobia and I am not 
prepared to stand by and watch the Jewish community feel vulnerable and 
suffer.  I have a long history of standing up to racism, fascism, anti-Semitism 
and Islamophobia; I will keep on doing so for anyone of any faith, belief, 
colour or gender. For years I, along with other Labour Councillors and Labour 
Party members have attended the Holocaust Memorial Service at the 
Synagogue and I hope to see Conservative Councillors at the next service, as 
this will show solidarity to the Jewish Community on a cross party basis.

COUNCIL – 20 SEPTEMBER 2018
QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS

Minute Item 35

14



MINUTES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE
HELD ON

11 September 2018 7.30  - 8.04 pm

PRESENT

Committee Members
Councillor John Strachan (Vice-Chair, in the Chair)
Councillor Ian Beckett
Councillor Nick Churchill
Councillor Karen Clempner
Councillor Michael Garnett
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop
Councillor Lanie Shears

Officers
Michael Pitt, Environment and Licensing Manager
Dimple Roopchand, Assistant Solicitor
David Taylor, Principal Environmental Health Officer
Denise Westwood, Junior Legal Assistant
Jo Maskell, Governance Support Officer

APOLOGIES
Councillor Tony Hall
Councillor Andrew Johnson
Councillor Edna Stevens

10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None.

11. MINUTES 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 10 July 2018 
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

12. MATTERS ARISING 

None.

13. WRITTEN QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 

None. 

Public Document Pack

15

Agenda Item 11a



14. COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 

The Committee received its work plan for the current municipal year.

RESOLVED that the Work Plan is noted.

15. USE OF ROOF SIGNS ON PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 

Further to Minute 43 (15/3/18), the Committee received a report on the 
result of the consultation on whether roof signs should be permitted on 
private hire vehicles.

The Committee felt that appropriate roof signs would be a safety feature 
for customers; and did not believe that there would be confusion with the 
hire trade, particularly as in Harlow, Hackney Carriages were required to 
be purpose built London cabs, which were easily identifiable. 

RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL that 

(a) Private Hire Vehicle licensing conditions be amended to require 
private hire vehicles to display roof signs;

(b) the specification for roof signs displayed by licensed private hire 
vehicles, be delegated to the Environment and Licensing 
Manager in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the 
Licensing Committee.

16. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES 

None.

17. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS 

None.

CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE

16



MINUTES OF THE CABINET
HELD ON

13 September 2018 7.30  - 9.05 pm

PRESENT

Committee Members
Councillor Mark Ingall, Leader of the Council
Councillor Waida Forman, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Equality and 
Diversity
Councillor Mike Danvers, Portfolio Holder for Resources
Councillor Eugenie Harvey, Portfolio Holder for Community and Wellbeing
Councillor Danny Purton, Portfolio Holder for Environment and Member
Councillor John Strachan, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration
Councillor Emma Toal, Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth
Councillor Mark Wilkinson, Portfolio Holder for Housing

Other Councillors
Councillor Simon Carter
Councillor Joel Charles
Councillor Tony Edwards
Councillor Michael Hardware
Councillor Andrew Johnson
Councillor Stefan Mullard
Councillor Chris Vince

Officers
Brian Keane, Managing Director
Dianne Cooper, Planning and Building 
Control Manager
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance and 
Deputy to the Managing Director
Jane Greer, Head of Community 
Wellbeing
Andrew Murray, Head of Housing
Colleen O'Boyle, Interim Head of 
Governance
Michael Pitt, Environment and 
Licensing Manager
Adam Rees, Governance Support 
Officer

38. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Lanie Shears.

39. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None.

40. MINUTES 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2018 are 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Leader.

Public Document Pack

17

Agenda Item 11b



41. MATTERS ARISING 

None.

42. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 

The question, together with the answer, is appended to the minutes.

43. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 

None.

44. PETITIONS 

None.

45. FORWARD PLAN 

RESOLVED that the Forward Plan is noted.

46. RECENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER, DEPUTY OR 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S) 

None.

47. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - SUBMISSION TO PLANNING 
INSPECTORATE FOR EXAMINATION UNDER REGULATION 22 

Cabinet received a report which recommended that Full Council that the 
Local Plan is approved for submission to the Secretary of State in 
accordance with Regulation 22 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Development) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended).

Proposed by Councillor Danny Purton (seconded by Councillor Mark 
Ingall) it was:

RESOLVED that Cabinet recommends to Full Council that:

A The Harlow Local Development Plan Pre-Submission 
Publication (2018) be formally approved for Submission to the 
Secretary of State in accordance with Regulation 22 of the Town 
and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) 
Regulations 2012 (as amended).

B The updated Local Development Scheme (attached as 
Appendix G to the report) be approved.

C Delegated authority be given to the Managing Director, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Portfolio 
Holder for Environment, to make and approve any minor and 

18



inconsequential amendments to the documents to be submitted 
in support of the Harlow Local Development Plan Pre-
Submission Publication (2018) arising from the completion of the 
ensuing technical studies prior to the Public Examination.

48. JOINT FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORT, QUARTER 1 2018/19 

Cabinet received a report which set out both the Council’s financial 
performance, along with its performance against its own performance 
indicators for the first quarter of 2018/19.

Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark 
Ingall) it was:

RESOLVED that:

A Cabinet acknowledged the projected outturn position set out in 
sections three and four of Appendix A to the report for the first 
quarter (April – June) of 2018/19 as follows:

i) An adverse variation on controllable budgets of £109,000 
representing 0.18 percent of the gross General Fund 
Budget.

ii) A total projected underspend of £429,000 representing -
0.71 percent of the gross General Fund Budget.

iii) The Council performed on or above target for 47 out of 48 
(98 percent) of its quarterly performance indicators.

49. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT, QUARTER 1 FINANCE REPORT 
2018/19 

Cabinet received a report which provided an update on the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) for the first quarter of 2018/19 and asked that 
Cabinet variances in the HRA budget and the forecast of the HRA and 
Major Repairs Reserve.

Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark 
Wilkinson) it was:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

A Noted:

i) An unfavourable variation against the approved Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) operational/controllable budget 
of £956,000 representing 1.8 percent of the gross HRA 
budget.

19



ii) An unfavourable non-operational variance of £4,104,000 
representing 7.72 percent of gross HRA budget which 
includes adjustments to capital programme financing as a 
result of the carryovers from 2017/18 and other 
adjustments.

B Noted the forecast balances at 31 March 2019, of £5,304,000 in 
respect of the HRA and nil in respect of the Major Repairs 
Reserve (MRR).

50. CAPITAL PROGRAMMES, QUARTER 1 FINANCE REPORT 2018/19 

Cabinet received a report which provided an update on the Council’s 
Housing and Non-Housing Capital Programmes, to approve a revised 
Housing Capital Programme for 2018/19, and to approve five business 
cases.
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark 
Wilkinson) it was:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

A Noted the progress on the delivery of the Council’s Housing and 
Non-Housing Capital Programmes as at Quarter 1 (1 July 2018) 
as follows:

i) Housing Capital Programme –forecast outturn of 
£24,551,000 (original estimate £18,804,000).

ii) Non-Housing Capital Programme – forecast outturn of 
£14,727,000 (original estimate £15,250,000).

B Approved:

i) Additional expenditure of £11,000, from the Non-Housing 
Capital Programme, within the Town Park Inclusive Play 
scheme (approved in 2018/19) for a new footpath and 
footpath improvements. The additional expenditure is fully 
grant funded by the County Council.

ii) A business case for the installation of new boilers and 
system controls at Abercrombie Playbarn, £25,000, 
funded from the approved Non-Housing Capital 
Contingency Budget.  

iii) A change to the business case to upgrade council 
websites (approved in February 2017). It is recognised 
that £40,000 of urgent works are required to upgrade the 
main Council website, to be funded in part from the 
approved budget of £20,000.

20



iv) An additional £10,000 from the Contingency budget to 
support the installation of new boilers and system 
controls at 2 and 2A Wych Elm. The current approved 
budget in the capital programme for this work is £15,000.

v) A revised current budget in the Non-Housing Capital 
Programme of £14,727,000 in line with the carryovers, 
adjustments and additional funding detailed in Table 4 of 
the report.

51. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2017/18 

Cabinet received a report in the Council’s treasury management functions 
in 2017/18.

Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark 
Ingall) it was:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

A Noted the annual Treasury Management Report for 2017/18 
(attached as Appendix A to the report), including that the 
Council operated within the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement during 2017/18, and that the report is recommended 
to Full Council for approval.

B Noted the issues that the outcome of the EU Referendum is 
creating and their impact on the Council’s treasury management 
activities.

52. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR DOMESTIC WASTE AND RECYCLING 
COLLECTION SERVICES 

Cabinet received a report to award a contract for domestic waste and 
recycling collection services following the expiration of the current contract 
at the end of March 2019.

Proposed by Councillor Mark Ingall (seconded by Councillor Danny 
Purton) it was:

RESOLVED that:

A The most economically advantageous tender for the contract for 
the Provision of Domestic Waste and Recycling Collection and 
Allied Services submitted by Bidder A be accepted, subject to 
formal contract.

B Delegated authority be given to the Managing Director, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council, to make the 
necessary contractual arrangements.

21



53. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ADVICE SERVICES 

Cabinet received a report recommending the award of contract to provide 
Advice Services for three years from 1 October 2018.

Proposed by Councillor Eugenie Harvey (seconded by Councillor Emma 
Toal) it was:

RESOLVED that:

A Contractor A be awarded the contract for delivery of Advice 
Services for a period of three years from 1 October 2018 at 
£90,000 per annum subject to paragraph 7 of the report.

B Delegated authority be given to the Head of Community 
Wellbeing, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Community and Wellbeing, to make the necessary contractual 
arrangements.

54. MHCLG BUSINESS RATES PILOT PROGRAMME 2019-20 

Cabinet received a report to grant delegated authority to the Head of 
Finance in consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Portfolio 
Holder for Resources, to give notice formally of the Council’s intention to 
accept or to decline to opt into the 75 percent BRR Pilot Programme if it 
was deemed financially favourable.

Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark 
Ingall) it was:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

A Noted the content of the report and its potential implications for 
the forthcoming budget setting for 2019/20.

B Granted delegated authority to the Head of Finance, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council and the Portfolio 
Holder for Resources, to give notice formally of the Council’s 
intention to accept or to decline to opt into the 75 percent BRR 
Pilot Programme with the other constituent Essex local councils 
as deemed most favourable to the Council.

55. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COMMITTEES/WORKING 
GROUPS/PARTIES AND PANELS

a) Referral from Scrutiny Committee - Civic Pride and Education

Cabinet received a referral from the Scrutiny Committee which 
recommended additional funding to support events and activities with a 
theme of Civic Pride.

22



Proposed by Councillor Eugenie Harvey (seconded by Councillor Waida 
Forman) it was:

RESOLVED that:

A Cabinet supports the events and activities with a theme of Civic 
Pride, as set out in paragraphs 10 to 13 of the original report 
attached as Appendix 1.

b) Referral from Scrutiny Committee - Review of Universal Credit in Harlow - 
Update Report

Cabinet received a referral from the Scrutiny Committee which asked it to 
note some specific ongoing transitional issues arising from the 
implementation of Universal Credit.

Proposed by Councillor Mark Ingall (seconded by Councillor Emma Toal) it 
was:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

A Noted the continued operational issues that the transition to 
Universal Credit is having for the Council and its services during 
the first 12 months of the live scheme in Harlow and in 
particular:

i) Delays in payments being made to housing providers.

ii) The increased level of rent arrears.

56. MINUTES OF PANELS/WORKING GROUPS 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings are noted.

a) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 25 July 2018 of Shareholder Sub 
Committee

b) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 9 August 2018 of Cabinet Overview 
Working Group

57. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS 

None.

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

23



 

 

 

 

Agenda item 5 refers 
 

1. Mr Cliff Moore to Councillor Eugenie Harvey, Portfolio Holder for 
Community and Wellbeing 

 

I understand the successful tenderer must hold a specialist level quality mark 
(paragraph 5 page 1448 of the Cabinet reports pack). Contractor A 
does not hold a specialist level quality mark. Please explain why the Council 
has ignored this essential criterion? Contractor B holds the relevant specialist 
level quality assurance standard. 
 
Reply from Councillor Eugenie Harvey, Portfolio Holder for Community  
and Wellbeing 

 
The question is unfortunately based on an incorrect premise. The criterion 
has not been ignored. Neither bidder met the quality assurance requirement 
when the tenders were evaluated.  
 

 

CABINET – 13 SEPTEMBER 2018 
QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 

Minute Item 42

24


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	34 Questions from the Public
	35 Questions from Councillors

	11a Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 11 September 2018 of Licensing Committee
	Minutes

	11b Minutes of meeting Thursday, 13 September 2018 of Cabinet
	Minutes
	42 Written Questions from the Public


